

# Year-End Client Letter 2020

Current Requirements for Documenting and Reporting

December 1, 2020

Dear Friends and Clients of Blue & Co.:

In this year of the unpredictable, one thing we can predict is the need to prepare for year end. It is that time of year again when we take this opportunity to provide you with some reminders and information regarding the current requirements for documenting and reporting various items that have come about as a result of various tax provisions, and other important information that could potentially affect reporting for you or your business.

If you should have any questions about this information, please call us. We would be happy to discuss these items as they relate to you and your business. Thank you for allowing us to serve you as we head into 2021.

Blue & Co., LLC

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

| AUTOMOBILE DOCUMENTATION REQUIREMENTS AND REIMBURSEMENT FOR PERSONAL USE  OF COMPANY VEHICLE     | 1  |
|--|----|
| Allocation of Business and Personal Use of Vehicle   | 1  |
| Computing the Value of Personal Use to be Reimbursed or Treated as Compensation                  | 1  |
| Employee Reimbursement for Personal Use of Company Vehicle                                       | 2  |
| REPORTING OF HEALTH AND ACCIDENT INSURANCE OFFERED AND PREMIUMS PAID ON ANNUAL INFORMATION FORMS | 2  |
| DISABILITY INSURANCE PREMIUMS  | 4  |
| 2021 SOCIAL SECURITY   | 4  |
| ADDITIONAL MEDICARE TAX  | 4  |
| BE AWARE OF CHANGE IN 941 DEPOSIT FILING STATUS  | 4  |
| INDIANA FORMS REQUIRED TO BE SUBMITTED ELECTRONICALLY  | 5  |
| CHANGES TO KENTUCKY ELECTRONIC FILING REQUIREMENTS   | 5  |
| OHIO FORMS REQUIRED TO BE SUBMITTED ELECTRONICALLY   | 5  |
| OHIO MINIMUM WAGE INCREASE FOR 2021  | 6  |
| NEW HIRE REMINDERS   | 6  |
| New Hire Reporting Requirement   | 6  |
| Employment Eligibility Verification Form   | 6  |
| BEWARE OF PENALTIES FOR FAILURE TO PROPERLY FILE FORMS 1099 AND W-2                              | 6  |
| INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR VS. EMPLOYEE  | 8  |
| PAYROLL RECORDKEEPING REQUIREMENTS   | 8  |
| RECORDKEEPING REQUIREMENTS FOR TRAVEL, LODGING AND GIFT EXPENSES                                 | 10 |
| STOCKHOLDER LOANS TO OR FROM CORPORATIONS  | 11 |
| RETIREMENT PLAN CONSIDERATIONS   | 11 |

# AUTOMOBILE DOCUMENTATION REQUIREMENTS AND REIMBURSEMENT FOR PERSONAL USE OF COMPANY VEHICLE

# ALLOCATION OF BUSINESS AND PERSONAL USE OF VEHICLE

- Employees are required to have adequate records to substantiate business use. To satisfy the
  "adequate record" requirement, taxpayers must maintain an account book, diary, log,
  statement of expense, trip sheets or similar records and documentary evidence that in
  combination, are sufficient to establish business use. Estimates are not substantiated amounts.
  Expenses deducted for vehicles based on an "estimate" of business use may be disallowed.
- When an employee uses an employer-provided vehicle for non-business purposes, such as commuting to and from work and other personal use, the taxable fringe benefit to the employee is based on the ratio of personal and commuting miles driven to total miles driven.
- The personal use of an employer-provided vehicle may be treated as a taxable fringe benefit paid on a regular pay period, quarterly, semi-annually, or annually. The Internal Revenue Service (IRS) need not be notified of the accounting period used, and you can change the period at any time, so long as the benefits are treated as paid by December 31.
- Special accounting period election -- employers may report the personal use of company vehicles by utilizing annual reporting periods ending October 31 or later. The benefits paid in November and December (or any shorter period) can be carried forward and treated as benefits for the following year. By utilizing a reporting period other than December 31, you will avoid the year-end rush to accumulate data needed to calculate amounts to be included as compensation on employee W-2 forms.

# COMPUTING THE VALUE OF PERSONAL USE TO BE REIMBURSED OR TREATED AS COMPENSATION

- Employees must be notified by January 31 of the current year which method is being used to value personal use.
- Methods available:
  - o General Fair Market Value Method -- value of employee's use of an automobile equals the amount he would have to pay to lease a comparable vehicle on comparable terms in the geographic area in which the vehicle is available for use.
  - Annual Lease Value Method -- value of employee's use is based on the IRS supplied table that provides the value of leasing the automobile based on its fair market value. Fuel and Repairs and Maintenance costs need to be added to the lease value determined.
  - Cents-Per-Mile Method -- value of employee's personal use is based on the number of personal miles driven multiplied by an IRS-supplied optional standard mileage rate. The rate for 2020 is 57.5 cents per mile, if fuel is also provided. As of this date, the 2021 mileage rate has not been released.
  - O Commuting Rule \$1.50/one-way commuting trip if the vehicle is only allowed for business purposes and de minimis personal usage.

#### EMPLOYEE REIMBURSEMENT FOR PERSONAL USE OF COMPANY VEHICLE

- Employee may reimburse value of personal use to employer by year end, or
- Taxable amount of fringe benefit must be included as compensation on employee's W-2. The employer may elect not to withhold federal income tax; however Social Security (up to the limit) and Medicare taxes must be withheld. If the employer elects not to withhold federal income taxes on the value of providing a vehicle, written notification must be provided to the employee by January 31 of the election year or within 30 days after a vehicle is first provided to the employee. For 2020 W-2 presentation, the taxable fringe benefit is included in box 1 (Wages, Tips, Other Compensation), box 3 (Social Security Wages) unless the employee is above the taxable limit of \$137,700 for that tax, box 5 (Medicare Wages), and box 14 (Other), which should contain a notation that the amount is for personal use of auto. This fringe is also taxable in Indiana and Kentucky and should be included in box 16 (State wages, tips, etc.) and box 18 (Local wages, tips, etc.).
  - Link to calculation forms:
    - o Reimbursement
    - o Auto Fringe Benefit
  - o <u>Link to Annual Lease Value Table</u>

# REPORTING OF HEALTH AND ACCIDENT INSURANCE OFFERED AND PREMIUMS PAID ON ANNUAL INFORMATION FORMS

Information Forms 1094-C and 1095-C are required annually for employers who meet the definition of an applicable large employer (employers with 50 or more full-time and full-time equivalent employees) and any employer that sponsors a self-insured health plan. Forms are to provide the IRS information about the health care coverage, if any, they offered to their full-time employees for the previous calendar year, and to provide statements to their full-time employees. Statements are to be furnished to full-time employees on or before January 31, thereby doubling up on the reporting requirements that certain employers have in January. Also, if 250 or more forms 1095-C will be filed, forms must be filed electronically. Employers generally have until February 28 (March 31 if filed electronically) to file these forms with the IRS. The due date for 2020 Forms falls on a weekend, making these forms due March 1, 2021 (March 31 if filed electronically). Penalties for failure to file and failure to provide correct payee statements are \$280 per form.

Employers should use the information about the number of employees and their hours of service during 2019 to determine whether they will be considered an applicable large employer for 2020 reporting requirements. Full-time employees are those that work, on average, at least 30 hours per week. For this purpose, 130 hours in a calendar month will be treated as the equivalent of at least 30 hours per week. Part-time employees are calculated as full-time equivalents by taking the total hours worked each week and dividing by 30. For instance, 20 employees working 15 hours per week on average is the equivalent of 10 full-time employees. For those employees that you will need to prepare a Form 1095-

C, you will also need to report, by month, the lowest monthly premium cost for self-only coverage, the months the employee was offered insurance, and if coverage was offered for self only, or for a spouse and / or dependents as well. An employee does not include a sole proprietor, partner in a partnership, a 2-percent S corporation stockholder or a worker that is a qualified real estate agent or direct seller. Employers subject to reporting requirements will find it beneficial to track each employee's number of hours worked by month in 2021, as well as coverage offered to each employee.

In addition, if you will issue 250 or more W-2 forms for 2020, you will want to consider tracking premiums paid for individual employees in your payroll system starting in January 2021, as W-2 reporting requirements may become effective in 2021 for coverage provided for 2020. For non-stockholder employees, the cost of the coverage under an employer-sponsored group health plan is not included in taxable wages, but is to be reported on an employee's Form W-2 in box 12 using code DD. In general, the amount reported should include both the portion paid by the employer and the portion paid by the employee. Reporting of dental and vision coverage is optional if separate from the major medical plan. In addition, reporting of coverage provided under a multi-employer plan is currently not required under transitional rules. Reporting requirements for stockholder-employees of S Corporations are described below.

A stockholder-employee may not claim a deduction on their individual income tax return unless the health insurance premiums paid are properly reported as compensation on their W-2. If you are a stockholder-employee owning greater than 2% of the outstanding stock of an S Corporation, and the corporation is paying the premiums for your health and accident insurance under a group health plan, you must either report the total amount of premiums paid as additional compensation on your W-2 or reimburse the corporation for the premiums paid. Premiums treated as taxable fringe benefits are not subject to Social Security or Medicare if the stockholder or spouse is **not** eligible to participate in another employer-subsidized health insurance plan. For purposes of stock ownership, the rules of attribution apply. These rules state that for certain purposes, an individual is considered to own shares of stock owned by various other related persons or entities. For instance, an individual is considered to own stock owned by his or her spouse (unless legally separated) or stock owned by his or her children, grandchildren, or parents. For 2020 W-2 presentation, the taxable fringe benefit is included in box 1 (Wages, Tips, Other Compensation), boxes 16 and 18 (State and Local wages), and box 14 (Other) which should also contain a notation that the amount is for health insurance premiums. For 2020 returns, a deduction may generally be made on the stockholder-employee's individual income tax return for one hundred percent (100%) of the amount included in income.

Keep in mind that 2% shareholders in an S Corporation are only treated as shareholders entitled to the self-employed health insurance deduction if the health insurance is provided by the Corporation, whether directly or reimbursed to the shareholder. If an individual policy is purchased personally and not reimbursed, the shareholder is not treated as self-employed and is only able to deduct the health insurance as an itemized deduction subject to the 7.5% adjusted gross income limitation.

## DISABILITY INSURANCE PREMIUMS

When disability insurance premiums are paid by the employer, any disability benefits received are taxable to the recipient. If all premiums are paid personally, benefits are received tax-free. For this reason, many of our clients with individual policies choose to pay the premiums personally. If your disability insurance program has individual policies, the covered employee may elect to pay the premium. If a group program is used, the rules become more complex. Please call us if you would like to discuss tax options for your disability plan.

Finally, as with health insurance, disability premiums paid for a stockholder-employee owning more than 2% of an S corporation should be included on Form W-2. Unlike health insurance, though, disability premiums are subject to Social Security, Medicare, and unemployment taxes.

# 2021 SOCIAL SECURITY

The earnings base for the Social Security portion of FICA tax for 2021 will increase to \$142,800 (compared to \$137,700 for 2020) and the Medicare portion of FICA tax will again apply to all earnings. Both employee and employer are subject to rates of 6.2% on Social Security taxable wages (up to the earnings base amount) and 1.45% on Medicare taxable wages for 2021.

#### ADDITIONAL MEDICARE TAX

In addition to withholding Medicare tax at 1.45% as noted above, employers must withhold an additional 0.9% Additional Medicare Tax from wages paid to an employee in excess of \$200,000 each year. This additional withholding is required in the pay period in which the employee exceeds \$200,000 and must be withheld through the remainder of the calendar year. There is no matching requirement for the employer on this additional tax.

# BE AWARE OF CHANGE IN 941 DEPOSIT FILING STATUS

The Internal Revenue Service will generally not issue a notice if your filing status has changed from monthly to semiweekly. The rules governing such a change indicate that your filing status is determined by the amount of taxes reported on Forms 941 in a four-quarter lookback period which begins July 1 and ends June 30. If you reported \$50,000 or less of taxes for the lookback period, you are a monthly schedule depositor. If, however, you reported more than \$50,000 in taxes, you are a semi-weekly depositor. If you reported more than \$50,000 in employment taxes on your Forms 941 for the period of July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020, you are required to make semiweekly deposits of your taxes for calendar year 2021. See your Circular E, Employer's Tax Guide (IRS Publication 15) for more information.

## INDIANA FORMS REQUIRED TO BE SUBMITTED ELECTRONICALLY

Several years ago, Indiana mandated electronic filing of the WH-1 (Indiana Withholding Tax Voucher) and ST-103 (Sales and Use Tax Voucher). These forms, along with Forms WH-3 and W-2, should be filed electronically via INTax. For further information or to register to file electronically, visit their website at <a href="https://www.intax.in.gov/">https://www.intax.in.gov/</a>.

Indiana requires electronic filing of Forms WH-3 and W-2s for any employer filing more than 25 W-2s. If you have fewer than 51 W-2s, you may either manually input the W-2 information or upload a text file. If you have 51 to 2,000 W-2s you must upload a text file. If you have more than 2,000 W-2s you may bulk file by uploading the information directly in the Department's system.

#### KENTUCKY FORM FILING REQUIREMENTS

Effective January 1, 2018, Kentucky lowered the mandate for filing forms electronically. E-filing is now required if you are issuing 26 or more forms (W-2, or 1099 series). As a reminder, these forms are due to the Kentucky Department of Revenue (KDOR) by January 31, 2021. No extensions are available for these filings. If you are filing 25 or fewer forms, you will need to prepare and send a paper Form K-5, or e-file. Paper copies of forms (W-2's or 1099's) are not to be submitted and will not be accepted, nor will they be considered as satisfying the filing requirement. Paper forms should be retained for your records and provided upon request.

Forms K-1 and K-3 (Employer's Return of Income Tax Withheld) need to either be prepared using Kentucky's online filing system, "WRAPS", or use the forms sent directly from KDOR. Fileable forms are not available online. To request additional copies of fileable forms, you may call the KDOR at (502) 564-7287.

For further information, visit the KDOR website at <a href="https://revenue.ky.gov/Business/Pages/Employer-Payroll-Withholding.aspx">https://revenue.ky.gov/Business/Pages/Employer-Payroll-Withholding.aspx</a> or contact your local Blue office.

# OHIO FORMS REQUIRED TO BE SUBMITTED USING OHIO BUSINESS GATEWAY

Ohio requires electronic filing of Forms IT-3 and W-2s for any employer filing 250 or more W-2s, using the approved format through the W-2/1099 Upload feature on the Ohio Business Gateway. File specifications can be found in the Ohio Department of Taxation W-2 Upload Specifications Guide at <a href="https://tax.ohio.gov/static/forms/employer\_withholding/2020/2020\_w2\_specs\_v1.pdf">https://tax.ohio.gov/static/forms/employer\_withholding/2020/2020\_w2\_specs\_v1.pdf</a>. For employers that have less than 250 W-2s, Ohio does not require employers to submit W-2s; however, employers must paper-file the Ohio IT-3. Please note if the employer does not submit W-2s to Ohio, the Ohio Department of Taxation may request W-2s periodically when conducting compliance programs. Even though employers filing less than 250 W-2s are not required to file electronically, Ohio encourages employers to file their W-2s electronically.

#### OHIO MINIMUM WAGE INCREASE FOR 2021

Ohio's minimum wage rates have increased for 2021. For non-tipped employees, the new rate is \$8.80 per hour (up from the 2020 rate of \$8.70 per hour). For tipped employees, the new rate is \$4.40 per hour, plus tips (up from \$4.35 per hour for 2020). The minimum wage rates apply to businesses with annual gross receipts over \$323,000. Employers below \$323,000 in gross receipts follow the Federal minimum wage guidelines.

## **NEW HIRE REMINDERS**

# NEW HIRE REPORTING REQUIREMENT

To locate individuals attempting to avoid child support obligations and to enforce child custody and visitation rights, the U.S. Congress mandated that the states establish a directory of newly hired employees. Indiana employers are required to submit to the Indiana Department of Workforce Development a report containing employee name, address, and social security number, as well as employer name, address, and Federal identification number. The information must be submitted within twenty (20) business days of the new employee's date of hire via fax, internet transfer, magnetic reporting, or mail. You may be subject to a fine of \$25 per employee for new hires not reported. Online reporting is available by visiting <a href="http://www.in-newhire.com">http://www.in-newhire.com</a> for Indiana employers. States other than Indiana have requirements for reporting ranging from 5 days to 35 days. Please contact us for requirements for filing.

# EMPLOYMENT ELIGIBILITY VERIFICATION FORM

Form I-9 (Employment Eligibility Verification Form) must be completed by all employers for every employee hired after 11/6/1986. The form includes a list of acceptable documents that establish identity and employment eligibility. Employers may face significant penalties for noncompliance. A revised version of the form was released on October 21, 2019. A blank copy of the revised form can be obtained at https://www.uscis.gov/i-9.

# BEWARE OF PENALTIES FOR FAILURE TO PROPERLY FILE FORMS 1099 AND W-2

The Internal Revenue Service (IRS) and Social Security Administration (SSA) have started to strictly enforce the penalties related to information returns (1099 forms) and wage and tax statements (W-2 forms). Effective with 2011 returns, the IRS began requiring that taxpayers respond to a question regarding filing of 1099 Forms. If an employer fails to file forms with the IRS or SSA or fails to include all of the required information on the form, the employer is subject to certain penalties. The Internal Revenue Code provides that an employer may be charged up to \$280 for each form filed with missing or incorrect social security numbers (SSN) and at least \$560 per form for intentional disregard of payee statement requirements. Also, entities filing 250 or more returns (which would include W-2s, 1099s, income, payroll or excise tax returns) must file **all** returns electronically.

Payment of interest, dividends, rents, royalties, commissions, non-employee compensation and services rendered by individuals and other non-corporate entities (with the exception of incorporated law firms and medical or healthcare firms -- see below) are some of the basic types of activities that trigger a requirement to file information returns. Interest, Dividend, and Royalties have a \$10 filing threshold. For all other payments, forms are required if the amount paid (in aggregate) is \$600 or more. Dividends paid by S corporations are generally not reportable on Form 1099. Withholding for federal income taxes ordinarily is not required for payments to non-employees. However, if the payee fails to furnish his or her taxpayer identification number (TIN) or you are notified by IRS to impose backup withholding because of an incorrect TIN or the payee is subject to backup withholding, the employer is required to withhold federal income taxes under the backup withholding rules: a flat 24% of the payment must be withheld and paid to the Internal Revenue Service. Taxpayers should get a Form W-9 (Request for Taxpayer Identification Number) from all persons and entities for potential reportable 1099 payments made prior to their work beginning. A blank copy of the form can be obtained at <a href="https://www.irs.gov/pub/irs-pdf/fw9.pdf">https://www.irs.gov/pub/irs-pdf/fw9.pdf</a>. If you wait until after payment is made and the payee is uncooperative, you may find yourself unable to follow the backup-withholding rules.

The big change affecting 1099s this year is the reporting of contract labor and non-employee compensation. Previously, this has been reported in Box 7 on the 1099-MISC. Starting with 2020 forms, this is now to be reported on the newly created 1099-NEC. You can access the form and its instructions on the IRS website <a href="https://www.irs.gov/forms-pubs/about-form-1099-nec">https://www.irs.gov/forms-pubs/about-form-1099-nec</a>.

When accumulating information on vendors, take care to obtain proper information on the form. Instruct vendors to complete the form so that the name and number provided on the form match the name and number reported on the vendor's income tax return. In the case of individuals who file a Schedule C, the correct identification number for the form is the payee's Social Security Number, as that is the number that matches the name reported on their income tax return. However, many unincorporated taxpayers have obtained federal identification numbers for their Schedule C activities. In this case, the Social Security Number of the individual is still the identification number that the IRS prefers the activities to be reported under. However, the federal identification number of the unincorporated business is acceptable. In the case of Single Member LLC's (an LLC with one owner), the W-9 should be completed with the owner's name on Line 1 of the W-9 (so that the payee name matches the name reported on Page 1 of the individual's income tax return). The owner's Social Security Number is also the preferred number to report, however, the federal identification number of the entity is also acceptable.

As noted above, all payments made to outside attorneys or medical and healthcare payments by a trade or business are to be reported on Form 1099-MISC. In such cases where the payments made are for the gross amount (which includes a portion for fees and a portion for a settlement), and it is unknown what portion is fees, the payment is subject to "gross proceeds" information reporting requirements on Form 1099-MISC.

## INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR VS. EMPLOYEE

The Small Business Job Protection Act, passed in 1996, clarifies and modifies the safe harbor which allows a taxpayer to treat workers as independent contractors. After 1996, a taxpayer may rely on an audit of a prior year only if the examination raised issues relating to the treatment of workers holding substantially similar positions. The law provides a safe harbor for treating workers as independent contractors if a significant segment of the industry does so and it also clarifies what will be considered significant. The industry practice need not have continued for more than ten years to be considered long standing, as under previous guidelines. Most importantly, if the taxpayer can prove that it was reasonable not to treat a worker as an employee under the safe harbor, the burden of proof to show otherwise shifts to the Internal Revenue Service.

The Internal Revenue Service began taking a closer look at this area, releasing Form 8919. Misclassified employees can use the form to calculate and report their share of uncollected Social Security and Medicare taxes due on their compensation. By using this form, the worker's Social Security and Medicare taxes will be credited to their record. If an individual feels that they have been wrongly classified as an independent contractor, they can file Form SS-8 to get a determination from the IRS. If a determination is made that individuals treated as independent contractors are indeed employees, the business may be subject to audit by the Internal Revenue Service and penalties for failure to properly withhold and submit payroll taxes may be imposed.

The IRS has a Classification Settlement Program (CSP) under which IRS examiners are able to offer businesses under examination for a worker classification issue a settlement using a standard closing agreement tailored to the business. The CSP is only available to taxpayers who timely file 1099 forms. Under the provisions of the CSP, the business is assessed less tax than it otherwise would, provided the business prospectively treats all subject workers as employees for all future federal employment tax purposes.

Determining a worker's status and filing and paying employment taxes can be complex. Business owners who need assistance are encouraged to consult a tax professional or payroll service provider.

# PAYROLL RECORDKEEPING REQUIREMENTS

Failing to meet Internal Revenue Service recordkeeping requirements can mean big penalties, not to mention large settlement rewards, should you be unable to provide the required information when requested by the IRS or in an employment-related lawsuit. Beginning in 2010, the IRS began random comprehensive examinations of taxpayers. Records pertaining to employment tax returns and issues are subject to review during these examinations.

The following records must be kept for at least four (4) years after the due date of the employee's personal income tax return for the year in which the payment was made:

- Employer identification number
- Employee name, address, occupation and Social Security number
- Total amount and date of each payment of compensation, and any amount withheld for taxes or otherwise, including reported tips and fair market value of non-cash payments
- Amount of compensation subject to withholding for Federal income, Social Security and Medicare taxes, and amounts withheld for each
- Pay period covered by each compensation payment
- Reason for difference between total compensation and taxable amount, if any
- Employee's Form W-4 (Withholding Allowance Certificate)
- Beginning and ending dates of employment for each employee
- Statements provided by the employee reporting tips received
- Information regarding wage continuation payments made to the employee by the employer or by a third-party payer under an accident or health plan, including the beginning and ending dates of the work absence and the amount and weekly rate of each payment, as well as copies of the employee's Form W-4S (Request for Federal Income Tax Withholding from Sick Pay)
- Fringe benefits provided to the employee and any required substantiation
- Requests from an employee to use the cumulative method of wage withholding
- Adjustments or settlements of taxes
- Copies of returns filed including Forms 941, 943, 944, 945, W-3, Copy A of Form W-2 and any Forms W-2 sent to employees but returned as undeliverable
- Amounts and dates of tax deposits

In addition, employers subject to the Federal Unemployment Tax Act (FUTA), must also keep records for at least four (4) years after the due date of Form 940 or the date the required FUTA tax was paid, whichever is later. These records must include:

- Total amount of employee compensation paid during the calendar year
- Amount of compensation subject to FUTA tax
- State unemployment contributions made, with separate totals for amounts paid by the employer and amounts withheld from employee's wages (Alaska, New Jersey and Pennsylvania)
- All information shown on Form 940
- Reason for any difference between total compensation and taxable wages

Additional record requirements may also apply for the Department of Labor (DOL), as well as wage-hour and unemployment insurance agencies at the state level.

## RECORDKEEPING REQUIREMENTS FOR TRAVEL, LODGING AND GIFT EXPENSES

The Internal Revenue Service no longer requires receipts for expenditures of less than \$75 for any expense for <u>traveling</u>, <u>lodging gifts or listed property</u>. In addition, adequate records must be maintained that establish the elements of amount, time, place and business purpose for travel and meals expenditures. <u>Exception</u>: If you own 10% or more of the stock of a corporation, or are related to a stockholder owning 10% or more of the corporation, you do not qualify for the \$75 threshold for documentation for travel, lodging, gifts or listed property, and must provide receipts for <u>all</u> expenditures.

While the IRS no longer requires receipts for expenditures of less than \$75, keep in mind that the Indiana Department of Revenue (and other state reporting agencies) may require receipts to prove payment of applicable sales tax in the event of an audit of sales and use tax. Therefore, we recommend that you carefully evaluate your situation to determine what records to keep.

**Please note that entertainment expenses are no longer deductible.** The IRS has issued final guidance stating that "entertainment" includes dues or fees to any social, athletic, or sporting club or organization, but does not include food or beverages unless the food or beverages are provided at or during an entertainment activity and the costs of the food and beverage are not separately stated from the entertainment costs.

Many meals previously considered 100% deductible are now only 50% deductible and are scheduled to become nondeductible after 2025. Until then, taxpayers may deduct 50% of otherwise allowable business meals expenses if:

- The expense is an ordinary and necessary expense under § 162(a) paid or incurred during the taxable year in carrying on any trade or business.
- The expense is not lavish or extravagant under the circumstances.
- The taxpayer, or an employee of the taxpayer, is present at the furnishing of the food or beverages.
- The food and beverages are provided to a "business associate" which is further defined as a "person with whom the taxpayer could reasonably expect to engage or deal (with) in the active conduct of the taxpayer's trade or business such as the taxpayer's customer, client, supplier, employee, agent, partner, or professional advisor, whether established or prospective."
- In the case of food and beverages provided during or at an entertainment activity, the food and beverages are purchased separately from the entertainment, or the cost of the food and beverages is stated separately from the cost of the entertainment on one or more bills, invoices, or receipts. The entertainment disallowance rule may not be circumvented through inflating the amount charged for food and beverages.

#### STOCKHOLDER LOANS TO OR FROM CORPORATIONS

In the event that you or your corporation borrow money from each other, it is strongly advised that a signed promissory note be executed at the time of such borrowings stating interest rate and repayment terms. Interest should be paid on the promissory notes at least annually. Interest is not required to be paid on aggregate advances of less than \$10,000. Failure to properly document stockholder loans or pay annual interest may result in the recharacterization of these advances as taxable dividends or wages.

## RETIREMENT PLAN CONSIDERATIONS

If you are looking for ways to boost employee morale, plan for retirement and reduce taxable income, you might consider adopting an employee benefit plan or contributing to an existing plan. Various legislation enacted in recent years provided new planning opportunities. These plans include the Roth 401(k), SIMPLE IRA, SIMPLE 401(k), safe harbor 401(k), automatic enrollment 401(k) and a new DB(k) plan available for businesses with 500 or fewer employees, which allows elements of a defined benefit plan and a 401(k) arrangement to be combined in a single plan. Please call us if you would like to discuss options available to you.

The following requirements and guidelines should be considered:

#### 1. Adoption of a Plan:

- Most qualified plans must be established before the end of the taxable year in order to take
  a deduction for a contribution to the plan for that year. The actual deposit of the
  contribution must be made by the extended due date of the tax return.
- A SEP (Simplified Employee Pension) can be adopted up until the due date of the tax return.

#### 2. Limits on Contributions:

- Annual IRA contributions (both traditional and Roth) are limited to the lesser of \$6,000 or taxable compensation for both 2021 and 2020. Catch-up contributions are \$1,000 for persons over age 50. Roth IRA plan contributions are also limited based on Modified adjusted Gross Income amounts reported on the income tax return for the various filing statuses.
- 401(k) Salary Deferrals are limited to \$19,500 for both 2021 and 2020. Catch-up contributions to a 401(k) plan for persons age 50 are \$6,500 for 2021 and 2020, bringing total salary deferrals to \$26,000 for both 2021 and 2020, provided your plan permits catch-up contributions. An employer could choose to allow participants to designate all or part of their elective contributions as a Roth contribution. Unlike regular 401(k) contributions, these contributions are made with after-tax dollars, all investment gains are tax free (not tax-deferred as with a traditional 401(k) contribution), and, if it is rolled to a Roth IRA, the money does not need to be withdrawn before death. A plan amendment is required to add the Roth 401(k) feature.

- The limit on elective deferrals to a SIMPLE retirement plan is the lesser of \$13,500 or 100% compensation for both 2021 and 2020. Catch-up contributions to a SIMPLE plan for persons age 50 or over are also unchanged at \$3,000 for both 2020 and 2021, bringing total deferrals to \$16,500 for 2021 and 2020, provided your plan permits catch-up contributions.
- Annual Additions (all contributions and forfeitures added to a participant's account) are limited to the lesser of \$58,000 in 2021 (\$57,000 for 2020) or 25% of compensation. Salary deferral contributions do not count toward the 25% limit and catch up contributions do not count toward the \$58,000 limit.

# 3. Limits on Deductions:

- Profit Sharing Plans, and SEPs The maximum contribution is 25% of eligible compensation for 2021. The plan document will define if compensation is reduced by elective deferrals (401(k) and cafeteria plans).
- Money Purchase Pension Plans The maximum contribution is 25% of eligible compensation.

# 4. Limits on Compensation:

- Considered compensation cannot exceed \$290,000 in 2021 (\$285,000 for 2020).
- Compensation of spouses is not combined. Each may have up to the limit in compensation.
- Self-employed persons Compensation for purposes of plan contributions is reduced by the amount of the contribution and by 1/2 of Self Employment Tax.

#### 5. Minimum Distribution Requirements:

- Generally, a plan may permit participants (other than 5% owners) who have attained age 70½, but have not retired, to elect not to take minimum annual distributions from the plan. Individuals who are 5% owners must begin taking distributions once they reach age 70½.
- The CARES Act has waived all Required Minimum Distributions for calendar year 2020 for all retirement plans.

## 6. Miscellaneous:

- If your plan has more than 100 participants, an audit may be required.
- ERISA requires that a fidelity bond with coverage equal to 10% of plan assets (\$1,000 minimum and \$500,000 maximum) be obtained. In addition, if your plan holds "non-qualifying assets," the bond must be 100% of the value of those assets or else an audit will be required.

If you would like more information about any of the above, please contact your Blue & Co., LLC representative.